Regional District of Mount Waddington 2017 Annual Report

RDMW 2017 Annual Report & Financial Statements
Table of Contents

Section 1. RDMW Introduction ................................... 2
Section 1.1 Board of Directors - 2017 ............................. 2
Section 1.2 Electoral Area – Governance Divisions ........ 3
Section 1.3 Message from the Chair ............................... 4
Section 2. Regional Services........................................ 5
Section 2.1 Administration ............................................. 5
Section 2.2 Finance ......................................................... 8
Section 2.3 7-Mile Landfill and Recycling Centre .......... 11
Section 2.4 Parks ........................................................... 13
Section 2.5 Planning ...................................................... 16
Section 2.6 Economic Development ............................. 23
Section 2.7 Emergency Planning ................................... 28
Section 3. Sub-Regional Services ............................... 30
Section 3.1 Transit ........................................................ 30
Section 3.2 Chilton Regional Arena............................... 32
Section 4. Local Services ........................................... 35
Section 4.1 Water Services ........................................... 35
Section 4.2 Sewer Services............................................ 37
Section 4.3 Fire Services ............................................... 39
Section 4.4 Solid Waste Services .................................. 43
Section 4.5 Local Road Services .................................... 46
Section 5. 2017 Financial Statements ........................ 47

June 20, 2018

1

Regional District of Mount Waddington 2017 Annual Report

Section 1. RDMW Introduction
Section 1.1 Board of Directors - 2017
Chair
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Andrew Hory
Heidi Soltau
Phil Wainwright*1
Dave Rushton
Hank Bood
Pat Corbett-Labatt *2
Denis Buchanan*3
Jan Allen
Shirley Ackland

Electoral Area C
Electoral Area A
Electoral Area B
Electoral Area C
District of Port Hardy
District of Port Hardy
Village of Alert Bay
Village of Port Alice
Town of Port McNeill

Phil Wainwright Resigned January 1, 2018 and was replaced by his Alternate, Cathy Denham; *2 Pat
Corbett-Labatt was replaced by John Tidbury effective January 1, 2018, *3 Michael Berry served to
October 31, 2017.
*1
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Section 1.2 Electoral Area – Governance Divisions
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Section 1.3 Message from the Chair
Greetings,

The last year has seen many milestones and
achievements in the Regional District of Mount
Waddington. Most notably, the Electoral Area
boundary change which will better represent
populations and communities within the region
by improving the average ratio of director to
constituent. Achievements in solid waste and
other services have also been significant with
improvements across the region, the first solar
Zamboni in the country comes to mind. Of less
obvious note but highly relevant to this year as an
election year is the effort to review and update
the RDMW policy manual – this has taken a lot of
effort and perseverance (and is still being worked
on) but is well worth the effort to give everyone a
clear guide to process and procedure.
As 2018 is an election year and many directors have stated an intention to retire I would like to say to
them it has been educational experience working with you all and great thanks are due for your diligence
and efforts on behalf of the communities of Northern Vancouver Island and region as a whole. For those
of you hoping to return I hope to join you again at the table for the next term.
Local government is highly important and directly relevant – I am proud to be an element of keeping it
efficient, inventive, and transparent, along with the “can do!” staff and my fellow directors.

Sincerely,

Andrew Hory
Chair R.D.M.W
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Section 2. Regional Services
Section 2.1 Administration

The Regional District of Mount Waddington administrative office is located in the community of Port
McNeill, centrally located within the region.
The Regional District of Mount Waddington was fortunate to have many infrastructure funding grants
approved in 2016 and 2017; with most projects well underway in 2017. Once these projects are
complete most of the infrastructure that the RDMW is responsible for will have been rejuvenated.
Coupled with continued debt free status, this places almost all of the 35 RDMW services in an excellent
financial and operational position.
The process to revise the electoral area boundaries was almost completed in 2017, with cabinet
approval the last remaining obstacle. The boundaries should be in place in time for the 2018 elections.
Most policies will have reviewed and updated in preparation for the election.

Climate Action Charter Report:
•
•
•
•
•

Operational emissions increased 16% from 2016; down 35% since 2011, to 126 tonnes CO2e
Most increases were from higher heating costs due to colder winter weather
Total energy use increased by 5%; largely an increase in propane use to heat recreation
buildings
Total energy consumption is down 21% since 2011 with cumulative savings now almost
$240,000
The Arena service continues to lead reduction efforts, with hydro use down 45% since 2011 and,
starting in 2018, fossil fuel use is down 100% to zero
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•

Again, all RDMW CO2e operational emissions are offset by the 7 Mile Biocover project which
was expanded in 2017; this resulted in a reduction of 439 tonnes of which 313 tonnes of surplus
offsets is available for distribution to 1st Nations and Municipal partners

In 2018, the RDMW will formalize its operational GHG emissions targets to 50% reduction by 2020 and
60% by 2025 (down from 2011 levels). These targets will be met by continuing to improve efficiencies
that will result in reduced long term costs to taxpayers without a decline in service levels.

Figure 1: RDMW Operational Carbon Footprint

2017 Completed &
Ongoing Administration
Goals

Policy

Progress

Maintain Carbon Neutrality
and assist all Municipalities
within the RDMW to achieve
this goal

Continue to Utilize gas tax funds 100% complete. The RDMW has
strategically in local and regional been recognized carbon neutral
services and support and expand the since 2012. Carbon Credit
Solid Waste 7 Mile methane reduction surpluses distributed. Ongoing.
project. Distribute carbon credits with
partners as per agreements.

Work
with
Community
Health Network & other
agencies
to
address
determinants of health
Replace server & re-do office
network

Continue to provide administrative 100%. Ongoing
support to the Mt. Waddington
Community Health Network & lobby
on their behalf when appropriate.
Server replacement, workstation 100%.
upgrades & networking upgrade; fibre
optic service connection
All overhead fluorescent lights will be 100%.
replaced with dimmable LED lights

Replace office lighting
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Encourage
further Amend gas tax policies as necessary 100%.
Gas
tax
policies
reductions in Greenhouse for new UBCM agreements while amended,
GHG
projects
gases from all services
ensuring a strong connection to described elsewhere in report.
greenhouse gas reductions. Continue
to place priorities on project that most
cost effectively reduce greenhouse
gases. Continue to pilot new &
innovative Technologies

2018 & Ongoing Administration Goals
Complete process to amend
Electoral Area Boundaries
Customize & utilize GIS
system
throughout
organization
Digitize Administration files
Ensure that administration
staff are cross trained to
ensure that full coverage is
available for vacation and
sick time
Policy Manual Update
2018 Election
Emergency
Upgrade

Operations

Boardroom Expansion
Set
Operational
GHG
reduction Goals
Expand EV charging network
to include all key NI
communities on paved roads
Purchase Electric Vehicle
Improve Public Engagement

Work with Ministry of Community
Services staff to complete the process
Hire coop student to assist additional
servicing, property & imaging
information being available on system.
Planning Dept. lead.
Complete
digitization
of
all
administrative files
Complete transformation of the
finance department. Hire temporary
relief staff person. Fully utilize any
potentially available staff with cross
departmental skills.
Ongoing Special Committee Work

90% complete. Waiting for
Ministry approval.
95%. Ongoing. LIDAR imagery
now possible.
90%
90%. Partially complete; Staff
are very flexible in assisting
each other when requested.
Ongoing.

90%. Consolidation by July,
2018 available for candidates
Appt CEO, Deputy, election officials. Election date: October 24
Provide suitable training
New Board: November 20
Improve backup power systems to Pending grant funding
allow Boardroom to function as an
EOC during emergencies
Boardroom expansion & handicapped Pending funding from grant
washrooms
program(s)
Goals and action plans to achieve 50% For Spring 2018
reduction by 2020 and 60% by 2025.
Provide a robust EV charging network EV Regional charging network (5
to remove barriers to NI EV locations,
including
office,
ownership, including by local govts Sointula, Coal Harbour, Alert
operations and their staff
Bay and Port Alice
Needs sufficient battery range Upon completion of NI EV
between NI communities
Charging Network
Utilize newsletters, improved website Starting with Hyde Creek
updates, public meetings , social Community meeting in January
media & surveys

2017 Administrative Staffing: Chief Administrative Officer - Greg Fletcher; Deputy CAO – Jeff Long, Treasurer –
Theresa Flynn; Administrative Assistants –Melissa Tonkin & Nadine Weldon; Accounting Clerks - Belinda Sinclair,
Jamie Hamilton
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Section 2.2 Finance

Recreation is an important component of the North Island lifestyle. Along with local services, the RDMW
supports opportunities to promote tourism and investment in the region.
Finance is responsible for Cash Receipting, Utility billing, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, Payroll,
Insurance, Risk Management, Budgeting, Investing, Audit, Financial Statements, and other financial
reporting.
The department consists of the Treasurer and two full-time Accounting Clerks.

2017 Completed & Policy
Ongoing Finance Goals

Progress

Investing surplus funds

To date $5M has been invested
with earnings an average of
0.7% higher than the chequing
account. On-going.

Complete

Complete. On-going each year.

Invest reserve funds and surplus
monies while adhering to the
legislative requirements. Goals is to
earn on average 0.5% more than
chequing account
Financial To complete the audit and have the
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Statements by May Board Financial Statements ready for Board
Meeting
Approval by the May Board meeting
Make improvements to the Improve
continuity
schedules,
Financial Statements
segmented reporting.
Review
deferred revenue and Landfill liability
accounts
Review Tangible Capital Review asset and amortization
Assets
schedules
Current
Accounting Make improvements to variance
software
reports, chart of accounts, and create
a Trial Balance report.
Accounting software review

Improve
Statement
of
Financial Information report
Review Cash handling policy
and procedures

Review Procurement and
Purchasing policies and
procedures
New Financial & Budgeting
software
Review Reserve balances

2018 Finance Goals

Complete.

Complete.

Completed new chart of
accounts and created new
reports. Trial Balance could not
be created.
Review of accounting software to see Completed in September 2017.
if meets current and future needs.
Review resulted in new
Accounting and Budgeting
software being purchased.
Make improvements to report and Completed in June 2017.
simplify the entry of data. Review
guidelines to ensure compliant.
Review of the cash handling policy Completed review in October
and procedures at various Regional 2017. On-going each year.
District sites to ensure sufficient
internal controls are in place to
safeguard assets as well as promote
efficiencies.
Review of the Purchasing policy and Completed review and updating
Accounts Payable procedures.
of all existing financial policies
in December 2017.
New
policies approved by the Board
in Feb. 2018.
Select, purchase, & implement new Selection
and
purchasing
Accounting and Budgeting software.
completed in September 2017.
Implementation started in
November 2017.
Review reserve balances and create Complete.
new schedule for Board and
Managers

Implementation of Budget Complete implementation of new
Software
Budget software and create new
reports for budgeting and Financial
Plan schedules.
Implementation
of Complete
implementation
and
Accounting Software.
training of all major modules of the
new Accounting software. Major
modules include General Ledger,
Payroll,
Accounts
Receivable,

Complete.

Complete. Other modules such
as Fixed Assets, Purchase
Orders, Property Taxes (other)
and Human resources to be
implemented later.
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Accounts Payable, Utility Billing, Cash
Receipting, Property Tax assessments
and Bank Reconciliation.
Replace existing Credit Sign onto the Province’s purchasing 90% complete.
Four staff
Cards with Purchasing cards card agreement and issue new remain to be trained on the onpurchasing cards to staff.
line software. The Regional
District will soon be receiving
their first rebate.
Create new reports for the Create new schedules in the 95% complete.
Works still
Financial Statements
Budgeting software for the Financial needed to improve the
Statements.
segmented and TCA schedules.
Banking RFO
Issue RFP and select vendor.
To be started in Fall 2018.
Audit RFP
Issue RFP and select vendor.
To be started in Fall 2018.
Create
new
Financial Create
new
Financial To be started in June 2018.
Policies/Guidelines
Policies/Guidelines for TCA, Internal
Borrowing, and Investments.
BMO Purchasing cards on- Complete training of staff
To be started in June 2018.
line software
Variance and actual reports Make improvements to both the 80% complete.
variance and actual reports for
managers and the Board.
TCA reporting
Move TCA information from Excel 5% complete. Training and
spreadsheets into the Accounting setup of software is completed.
software Fixed Asset program.

2017 Financial Staff: Treasurer – Theresa Flynn; Accounting Clerks - Belinda Sinclair, Jamie Hamilton
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Section 2.3 7-Mile Landfill and Recycling Centre

The 7-Mile Landfill uses a biocover technology comprised of a fibrous base to improve the reduction of
gas generation and leeching from decomposing organic waste.
In 2017, the Regional District of Mount Waddington was awarded two-year funding from the Federation
of Canadian Municipalities to research and document the effectiveness of the 7-Mile Landfill and
Recycling Centre’s biocover technology in combatting the impacts of methane generation from organic
waste buried in the landfill. The RDMW also participated in a parallel study to develop a calculator that
would model the benefits of biocover technology.
7-Mile opened Sundays through the summer months as a trial to increase public access to waste
disposal services. Usage of the additional operational hours of the 7-Mile facility indicated a desired
need for the service extension, resulting in the offering of extended season operations from July through
to September of 2018.
In the coming year, the Regional District will, in relation to the biocover project, lease wood grinding
equipment as opposed to contracting out the work at 7 Mile Landfill. The unit being leased will
hopefully provide greater operational flexibility to service smaller communities with accumulations of
woody debris which can in turn be used by residents once the material is ground up.
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Finally in 2018, 7 Mile’s operational contract will be provincially tendered as per the required five year
cycle.

2017 & Ongoing Solid Policies/Process
Waste Goals

Progress

Improve customer service and • Provide landfill access on Sundays
solid waste service access
to residential customers during
summer months.

• Landfill in 2017 was
opened from 10 to 4 on
Sundays from June to
September.
• The RDMW successfully
applied for a $175,000 FCM
Operational Study grant for
a 2-year program, focusing
on the Phase 3 a closure
area

Explore
new
diversion Continue to assess environmental/ Introduced a textile diversion
opportunities for Industrial, business cases to establish new program in conjunction with
Commercial and Institutional diversion streams
the Diabetes Association of
waste generators.
Canada.

Expand the methane reduction Research the functionality of the bio
Biocover system to Phase 3a
cover system for methane gas
abatement
to
increase
its
effectiveness and provide a verified
alternative strategy for landfill
management that will have
improved environmental outcomes
and lower capital costs.

2018 Solid Waste Goals

Action

Explore
new
diversion Continue to assess environmental/ Recycle BC will use the 7 Mile
opportunities for Industrial, business cases to establish new Landfill and Recycling Center in
Commercial and Institutional diversion streams
2018 in its pilot program to
waste generators.
expand the diversion of flexible
plastic.
Improve customer service and • Provide landfill access on Sundays • Landfill in 2018 will be
solid waste service access
to residential customers during
open 10 to 4 on Sundays
summer months.
from July to September.
Expand the methane reduction Research the functionality of the bio • Continue
work
with
Biocover system to Phase 3a
cover system for methane gas
Sperling Hansen Associates
abatement
to
increase
its
to monitor and document
effectiveness and provide a verified
the effectiveness of the
alternative strategy for landfill
biocover technology to
management that will have
manage the impact of
improved environmental outcomes
landfill
gasses
with
and lower capital costs.
emphasis on methane.
Initiate monitoring of leachate Use funding from biocover project • Introduce ultrasonic meters
flow volumes
to develop system to monitor
at key locations in the
leachate flows through the leachate
leachate treatment system
treatment system.
to measure flows.
2017 Staff: Patrick Donaghy, Karl Digby, Brad Tierney, Jackie Kirnbauer, Cam Brady, and Patsy Bob
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Section 2.4 Parks

Bere Point Regional Park on Malcolm Island
Bere Point Regional Park observed another record year for both visitors and revenue in 2017, while Link
River use slightly declined. Demand continued to be high for waterfront sites at both campgrounds, with
an average total occupancy of 64% at Bere Pont and 52% for Link River. The newly constructed
campsites A through D at Bere Point experienced an 80% occupancy level throughout the 2017 season.
The North Island Salmonid Enhancement Association continued to
lease the Quatse River Regional Park from the RDMW, providing
operational requirements including site maintenance, reservations
and reporting. The Kwaksistah Regional Park remained as a no
booking necessary, no fee, first come first serve campsite.
The Regional District was successful in the bid to maintain the Alice
Lake Loop Recreational Sites for the 2017 summer season.
Deliverables included weekly onsite visits and facility maintenance to
several MFLNRO recreational sites including Marble River, Eternal
Fountain, Devils Bath, Kathleen Lake, O’Connor Lake and others. Parks
staff also maintain the Tex Lyon Trail and the Little Huson Caves
Regional Park. The access road was re-opened to Little Huson Caves
Regional Park in May 2017 following a spring washout impeding
public access.
Beautiful Bay Trail Damage

The tenure for the Beautiful Bay Trail, adjacent to the Bere Point Park
on Malcolm Island, was transferred from the Sointula Recreation
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Association to the RDMW in 2017. Repairs to the trail will be a major focus for Parks staff in 2018.
Parks staff also continue to provide valued assistance to other RDMW services included providing
improvements to the Telegraph Cove Road and brushing work at 7 Mile and to various local services.

Bere Point Summer Visitors, 2003-2017
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Link River Summer Use 2003-2017
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Figure 4: 2003 - 2017 Link River Park Visitors
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2017 Completed Parks Goals Policy

Progress

2018 & Ongoing Parks Goals

Progress

Complete improvements at Link Work with owners, the Village 100%
Complete
including
River Regional Park related to of Port Alice, to complete these parking area, day area and road
neighbouring subdivision.
improvements.
improvements
Alice
Lake
continuation

Loop

Policy

contract Continue execution of the
contract deliverables to for
Recreation & Trails BC.
Update a draft Parks master plan Review existing older plan and
for Board review.
update to reflect improvements
and changes to service and
provide key recommendations
for the RDMW Board.
Regional Parks Expansion
• Utilize Parks staff to help
complete and maintain the
Woss Heritage park.
• Sointula Recreation Society
requested that the RDMW
take over the operation of the
section 102 Beautiful Bay Trail
Repair Beautiful Bay Trail
Brush trail, repair water
crossings, Repair damage from
fallen trees, replace signage
Rehabilitate trail access to Little Remove old stairs etc.; build
Huson Caves park
wilderness category trail with
appropriate signage
Develop river walking trail along Identify, clear & brush & build
Link River
trail.
Build new washroom for Bere Prefab building; install pump
Point
and haul tanks

Completed in 2017. 2018 Bid
unsuccessful.
30% Further work pending
general policy manual update.

• 80% Heritage Park landscaping
etc. not yet complete. Parks
staff built picnic tables,
brushed site.
• 100%. Tenure now transferred
to the RDMW as far as the
Puoli Vali (Lost) Canyon.
Enable hikers to walk the trail
and return on the beach without
difficulty
50% Wood procured; upgrades
started
60% Underway.
For June, 2018

2017 Staff: Dean Tait, Norm Bullock. Manager –Greg Fletcher

June 20, 2018

15

Regional District of Mount Waddington 2017 Annual Report

Section 2.5 Planning

The RDMW Planning department will be working closely with the Economic Development department
towards the approval of a new wharf service for the community of Quatsino.

2017 PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
The RDMW Planning & Development Services Department provides the following core services:
a) property information and other enquiries related to planning, building, bylaw enforcement and
development;
b) processing of planning and development related applications (permits – building (Coal Harbour) /
development / development variance / site (Hyde Creek, Malcolm Island and Woss) / temporary
use, official community plan and zoning bylaw amendments, subdivision review and assessment,
board of variance appeals, etc.);
c) Crown land referral process – review and respond to referral of applications related to the use
/development of Crown lands including land covered by water;
d) bylaw complaints, investigation, enforcement and compliance;
e) operation and maintenance of the region wide geographic information system including sharing
and support for the four member municipalities;
f) review and update of regional and local community plans and zoning bylaws; and,

June 20, 2018
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g) attendance at meetings of the Advisory Planning Commissions (Hyde Creek, Malcolm Island and
Quatsino), Woss Residents’ Association and Coal Harbour Local Community Commission, on as
needed basis.
Summary of applications in 2017:

Applications
Building / Demolition Permit
Bylaw Enforcement
Crown Land Referral
Development Permit / Development
Variance Permit
Official Community Plan Amendment
Site Permit
Subdivision
Temporary Use Permit
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Total:

In Progress at
Year Start /
Received

Completed /
Closed

In Process at
Year End

5
13
17
0

2
8
17
0

3
5
0
0

1
14
5
0
6
61

1
14
2
0
4
48

0
0
3
0
2
13

In addition to the aforementioned services, the Department undertook work on the following projects:

2017 Planning Projects
REVIEW & UPDATE OF THE
REGIONAL ZONING BYLAW
(BYLAW NO. 21)

COMBINE DEVELOPMENT
PROCEDURES BYLAW WITH THE
PLANNING DEPARTMENT FEE
BYLAW / UPDATE PLANNING
PROCEDURES AND FEES

Objectives & Process

Status

The RDMW Zoning Bylaw contains specific
subdivision, use, density and siting regulations for
areas outside of municipalities and settlement nodes.
Recommended updates include the recognition of
developments on Mount Cain, consolidation of Alder
Bay and Telegraph Cove areas into the Bylaw,
consolidation of previous zoning map amendments,
improvement of floodplain development standards,
and clarification of foreshore use regulations. This
project is expected to be largely completed in-house
as time is available, with the exception of mapping
which may be undertaken by an external source. In
the interim, housekeeping amendments have been
made to Bylaw No. 21 to address a variety of issues.
Combine the two separate bylaws outlining the fees
and procedures associated with planning applications
bylaws into one, and update the procedures as well as
the fees that are charged in accordance with these
bylaws. As a result, RDMW Planning and
Development Procedures and Fees Bylaw No. 916 was
adopted on May 16, 2017.

20%
completed

100%
completed
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BYLAW CONSOLIDATION

SECURE CROWN GRANTS FOR
WOSS FACILITIES
DIGITIZATION OF PLANNING
FILES, PLANS AND MAPS

EXPANDED HIGH RESOLUTION
IMAGERY AREAS
APPLICATION OF ZONING
CATEGORY TO MARINE AREAS
SOINTULA PUBLIC WASHROOM

CIVIC ADDRESSING
IMPROVEMENTS IN IMAP
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
SYSTEM
SERVER UPDATE AND
COMPUTER NETWORK
RECONFIGURATION

UPDATES TO COMMUNITY
ZONING BYLAWS

Continued consolidating planning bylaws as some of
the previous amendments had not been integrated,
particularly OCP and zoning bylaws. Ensure that all
bylaws posted on the RDMW website reflect all
amendments as consolidated versions of these
bylaws.
Work on securing Crown grants from the Province for
the RDMW with respect to those Woss properties on
which the transfer station, heritage park, and sewage
treatment facilities are located.
An electronic filing clerk was hired over the course of
the 2016 / 2017 summer seasons to assist with the
digitization and electronic filing of the paper files,
plans and maps using scanning and computer
technology. While there are other paper documents
such as resource materials that could be digitized,
these are less of a priority and may be undertaken at
a future time when funds and staff resources allow.
Work with consultants to obtain enlarged areas of
imagery for the same eleven sites for which imagery
was obtained in 2016, for integration into the iMap
geographic information system.
Complete the process associated with the application
of a zoning category for marine areas by amendment
to Zoning Bylaw No. 21 through adoption of Bylaw
No. 920.
Finalize agreement with the Sointula Co-operative
Store Association, as well undertake processes in
relation to the issuance of a Development Variance
Permit, a Site Permit and a Highway Permit to
accommodate a public washroom facility.
A grant approved by Integrated Cadastral Information
Society to improve the display of civic addressing
information in the iMap GIS using NI911 data.
Coordinated a project whereby a new server with
updated software was installed and the computer
network and related software was reconfigured for
efficiency, speed and security improvements. This
project included integration of the newly available
Telus fibre optic internet service. Through work on
the system, it was possible to share one internet
service between the administrative office and arena,
thereby eliminating an internet service account that
was costing $1,200 per year.
A number of housekeeping changes were undertaken
in relation to the zoning bylaws for Coal Harbour,

100%
completed

100%
completed

100%
completed

100%
completed
100%
completed

100%
completed

100%
completed

100%
completed

100%
completed
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ADVISORY PLANNING
COMMISSION BYLAW UPDATE
BEAUTIFUL BAY TRAIL
REASSIGNMENT

QUATSINO WHARF

STRENGTHENING
RELATIONSHIPS WITH FIRST
NATIONS

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
SYSTEM

MOUNT WADDINGTON
AGRICULTURAL LAND USE
INVENTORY AND WATER
DEMAND MODEL

Malcolm Island and Woss. This included
enhancements to existing regulations such as the
parking requirements and the use of temporary
dwellings, and the introduction of new regulations for
things like the keeping of chickens. While this was
intended to be undertaken for the Hyde Creek Zoning
Bylaw as well, this has been put off and is to be
undertaken as part of the project to replace that
document in its entirety.
Preparation of a new, updated APC bylaw to replace
the current, outdated APC bylaw.
The Beautiful Bay Trail extends from the Bere Point
Campground to the Puoli Vali (Lost) Canyon on
Malcolm Island. Processed the transfer of the trail
from the Sointula Recreation Association to have the
Province reassign the trail to the RDMW.
Assisting the Manager of Economic Development with
aspects of the process associated with examining the
possible takeover by the RDMW of the Government
of Canada’s Quatsino public wharf.
Continue to work with the Region’s First Nations as
opportunities arise in order to pursue the goals of the
North Island Regional Protocol Agreement, build
government-to-government
co-operation
and
effectively consult with First Nations on RDMW policy
and development projects.
Continue providing municipal staff with a regional GIS
service. Improve the GIS service by adding additional
functionality, such as imagery and explore
opportunities to expand the service by facilitating
public access to GIS information.
Assisted the Provincial Ministry of Agriculture in
conducting an inventory of agricultural related
activities in the RDMW. Once completed, the
inventory will define the amount of actively farmed
land in the region as of 2017, act as a benchmark for
monitoring land use change, assist land use decisionmaking including official community plans and bylaw
updates, improve understanding of the challenges
and opportunities to enhance agriculture, and identify
opportunities to improve land use and resource
compatibility. An agricultural water demand model
will be prepared that will provide a scientific estimate
of agricultural water demand for current and future
scenarios, and improve understanding of water
demand patterns.

100%
completed
100%
completed

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing
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2018 PLANNING SERVICES & PROJECTS
In 2018, the Planning & Development Services Department will continue to provide core services as well
as undertake the following planning and non-planning related projects, as well as those projects which
are ongoing from 2017:

2018 Planning Projects
COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW &
UPDATE OF REGIONAL ZONING
BYLAW NO. 21
BYLAW CONSOLIDATION
QUATSINO OFFFICIAL COMMUNITY
PLAN UPDATE – GEOTECHNICAL
HAZARD AREAS
SECURE CROWN LAND TENURES
IMAP GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM

NEW CANNABIS LEGISLATION AND
POSSIBLE UPDATES TO ZONING
BYLAW REGULATIONS
UPDATE RDMW ADVISORY
PLANNING COMMISSIONS
BYLAW NO. 891
AMALAGAMATION OF MALCOLM
ISLAND ADVISORY PLANNING
COMMISSION AND LOCAL
SERVICES MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
PUBLICLY ACCESSIBLE IMAP
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
SYSTEM (MAPPING)

Objectives & Process
Continue work on a new zoning bylaw with the goal to replace
Zoning Bylaw No. 21 which has been in place since 1974. This will
not only update the zoning regulations for the rural areas, but will
implement the new Regional Plan adopted in 2016.
Continue consolidation of planning bylaws to ensure that all bylaws
posted on the website and are otherwise available for distribution
to the public, are updated and include the latest regulations.
Update Quatsino OCP with the results of the Landslide Hazard
Assessment prepared by M. Cullen in 2014 (may include expansion
of Forest Reserve designation and establishment of a Development
Permit Area for geotechnical hazard areas).
Undertake the processes necessary to renew, enlarge or secure
new Crown land tenures for RDMW and other public oriented
facilities and services on an as needed basis.
Continue to improve the GIS (iMap) service with the addition of
features and information with support from the CVRD. A new
version of iMap is scheduled to be released in 2018. Arrangements
for training / refresher sessions with municipal partners to be
undertaken as required.
Update regional and local area zoning bylaws where preferred in
relation to new legislation by the federal and provincial
governments with respect to the production, processing and retail
sale of cannabis. This process will be undertaken in consultation
with local advisory planning commissions.
The Advisory Planning Commissions Bylaw adopted in 2000
underwent a substantial update in 2015. Since its adoption in 2015,
housekeeping items have been identified that will be addressed as
part of an updated Bylaw No. 916 or replacement bylaw.
Prepare and process a new bylaw that will have the effect of
amalgamating the advisory planning and local services
management commission. This will require changes to the existing
RDMW Advisory Planning Commissions Bylaw No. 891.
Create a publicly accessible version of the existing iMap geographic
information system now only available to staff of the RDMW and
its four municipal partners. The public system would exclude more
sensitive information related to such things as property ownership
and would be accessible by links on the websites of the North
Island local governments.
June 20, 2018
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UPDATED BUILDING BYLAW

Given changes brought about as a result of new Provincial
legislation, namely the Building Act and regulations, it will be
necessary to update the RDMW’s building bylaw. Once it is
prepared, utilize the Municipal Insurance Association of BC’s new
building bylaw template to develop an updated building bylaw.
COAL HARBOUR OFFICIAL
The Coal Harbour Local Community Commission has expressed the
COMMUNITY PLAN UPDATE
desire to conduct an update to the Coal Harbour Official
Community Plan adopted in 2002. In this regard, staff are working
with the CHLCC by reviewing portions of the OCP as part of the its
regular meetings as time permits. This process will continue into
2018 with preparation of a new OCP document to be undertaken in
2019.
HYDE CREEK OFFICIAL
The Hyde Creek Advisory Commission has expressed the desire to
COMMUNITY PLAN UPDATE
conduct an update to the 2001 Hyde Creek Official Community
Plan. Continue to work with the HCAPC by reviewing portions of
the OCP as part of the its regular meetings as time permits. A
detailed questionnaire is planned to be distributed to Hyde Creek
property owners and residents with the results to be used as part
of the preparation and development of a new OCP and zoning
bylaw for the community. Processing of these new planning
documents is expected to be completed in 2019.
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
In an effort to inform the public about various land use planning,
building and development matters, including generating awareness
about applicable zoning bylaw regulations and required permit
processes, information articles will be prepared for inclusion in
newsletters to be mailed to property owners. A handout will also
be compiled that can be used to otherwise disseminate
information to the public.
GROUNDWATER AND WATER WELL Coordinate efforts with staff of the Provincial Ministry of Forests,
WORKSHOP
Lands and Natural Resource Operations and the Vancouver Island
Health Authority to conduct a free workshop to provide
information to the public pertaining to groundwater and water
wells. This would include topics such as protection of water wells,
how to test and treat well water, drought management techniques,
water conservations tips and technologies, etc.
2018 GENERAL LOCAL ELECTIONS
Act as Deputy Chief Election Officer in relation to the 2018 general
local elections for the four positions of electoral area director, one
for each of the four electoral areas, and the election of two
trustees to represent Trustee Electoral Area 2 on School District
No. 85’s Board of Education. Duties to include preparation of the
required election forms and nomination packages, procurement of
supplies and undertaking the nomination proceedings which
conclude on September 14, 2018.
VELIE LANE BEACH ACCESS TRAIL
Prepare application to be submitted to the Ministry of
Transportation and Infrastructure to obtain a Highway Use Permit
to facilitate construction and ongoing maintenance of a public trail
to the beach within the Velie Lane road right-of-way.
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PROVINCIAL LIDAR AND
ORTHOIMAGERY PROJECT

CLIMATE CHANGE AND RISING SEA
LEVEL WORKSHOPS

Working with GEO BC staff on an approved project whereby LIDAR
and orthoimagery will be obtained for most low lying and
populated areas of Vancouver Island and shared with local
governments as part of the Federal National Disaster Mitigation
Program. Ensure the project includes all four municipalities and the
Regional District’s unincorporated communities, as well as key
tourism areas in rural areas. The latter will be very helpful as part
of planning initiatives and when undertaking projects in more
remote locations that are often visited by tourists (e.g. San Joseph
Bay area, Mount Cain, etc.). This new data will be quite
comprehensive in nature, covering not only our communities, but
extensive areas around them. Once it is available, the new
LIDAR/imagery will be incorporated into the iMap geographic
information system for the RDMW and its municipal partners to
have access to as part of the RDMW’s service delivery at no further
cost to the municipalities. For those local governments that already
have imagery in iMap, this older imagery would be retained in
order to create a catalogue of imagery that will help illustrate
changes that occur over time.
Staff will work with the Living Oceans Society to obtain funding to
conduct one or more workshops in the RDMW on preparedness for
sea live rise in association with changes brought about by climate
change.

Staff: Jeff Long – Manager of Land Use Planning and Development Services

Malcolm Island Public Washroom
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Section 2.6 Economic Development

Economic Development staff have been working diligently to procure partnerships and funding for the
establishment of the Nimpkish Valley Heritage Park. The park will commemorate the cultural importance of
Nimpkish Valley, the history of the logging industry in the region and honour the men and women who have
lost their lives working in the forests of the North Island.
Economic Development Manager, Pat English, oversees a range of development projects within the are. The
Regional District of Mount Waddington (RDMW) is a diverse landscape of unsurpassed natural beauty. The
region’s distance from and comparative size to larger centres is an asset that makes communities on
Northern Vancouver Island and area unique, safe and desirable to live in. The region offered considerable
resources over a large land base that can and must be developed sustainably for communities’ social,
economic and environmental health. This includes forests, mines, water, fish and wildlife resources and
alternative energy within the RDMW.
The region’s full potential in the Adventure and Cultural Tourism sector needs to remain a focus of the
RDMW’s growth strategy. The sense of community, wherever one may live on the North Island, is what
brings people to come and stay. Coupled with relatively low property tax burdens and real estate values,
there are good arguments for relocating here when opportunities arise. Workforce development, retention
and attraction are high priorities across all sectors.
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Most of the essential services available in larger centres are found right here, offered by a vibrant range of
community organizations run by committed individuals and volunteers. The North Island has a culturally rich
and growing First Nations population who are today playing an increasingly critical role in the social and
economic destiny of the region.

Challenge and Opportunity
The forestry sector and the public sector are the largest employers in the region, with both wild and
aquaculture fish processing representing major contributions to the regional economy. Recent production
curtailments in Port Alice and ongoing work force rationalization in the industry and the regulatory regime
challenge the region’s ability to retain a dynamic and skilled workforce. The North Island Forest Industry
Attraction, Training and Retention Strategy, completed in 2016, led to the creation of the Vancouver Island
North Training and Attraction Society with a mandate to deliver a forestry training program and an integrated
marketing and attraction strategy, that will help reverse the potential decline in the sector.
The limitations of seasonal tourism and high precipitation levels pose a direct challenge to sustainable job
creation through the tourism sector. There have been recent increases in tourist activity seen which have
yielded investment in new products and facilities and a growing demand for shoulder season products. This
trend, if continued, will substantially increase the viability of the sector as an investment and as an
employment opportunity. The public education system is a worry for communities trying to retain working
families and offer basic post-secondary education and training that matches labour market trends. Corporate
structures and their interactions with the communities are not always what they could be, leading to a lack of
opportunity where more should exist.
North Island firms are some of the best around, where a need to create more in this vein across all sectors
has been identified. The Regional District continues to work to encourage more secondary small to medium
enterprises (SMEs) within the North Island. Smaller to medium employers increase economic diversity and
reduce the impact of difficult recessionary periods and large scale corporate restructuring. When both
primary and secondary sectors are present, a healthy tertiary lexicon of services exists to support them. Last
mile connections for the recently completed high speed broadband fibre from Sayward to Port McNeill offers
opportunities for a whole range of economic applications and will play an important role in our ability to
attract new businesses and residents.
One of the RDMW’s principal concerns is ensuring that this area is not simply an extraction ground for
primary resources, but one of added value as well. While acknowledging the historic, existing and future
benefits of primary industrial activities, the region’s rural economy needs more diversity across the spectrum
of economic activity. Secondary sector processing and manufacturing (niche or otherwise) are highly
competitive economic areas internationally but are necessary for a healthy mixed economy in any rural
region. Greater timber milling opportunities are strongly desired, reflective of the region’s massive Annual
Allowable Cut, in particular.
Of additional concern is the region-wide demographic decline of particular cohorts, which challenges the tax
base, costing communities dearly in terms of shrinking local school population. Regional demographic trends
reveal a need to retain and attract more working families.
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Over the coming years, the Regional District would like to see moderate economic growth occur within a
stabilized population. North Island communities eagerly await the opportunities for working families that will
evolve from partnerships that are proposed with First Nations on economic development projects. It is
expected that these partnerships will provide a path for First Nations to formally connect with all local
governments over time. The Regional District would support the development of local training programs for
the resource sector as a mechanism to retain youth and provide a regional based workforce; a growing
aquaculture sector that embraces environmental and economic sustainability; and an expansion of adventure
and cultural tourism that levers the marketing benefits associated with Whale Heritage Site designation.

Policy
Objective 1: Grow regional collaborations.
• Work with Woss Residents Association. School District
2017 Goals
85, to develop a plan for the repositioning of the
Woss Lake School as a community resource.
• Establish a Society with local stakeholders to oversee
the development of and the management of the
Vancouver Island North Training and Attraction
Strategy.
• Work with District of Port Hardy to deliver a C2C
Reconciliation workshop and an Aboriginal Business
Match convention
• Act as a co-chairperson (with a First nation partner) to
submit a proposal to host the Tourism Vancouver
Island 2018 Convention
• Work with the Manager of Operations to secure
funding for the 2017 invasive species eradication
program as a job creation project.
New 2018 Collaboration
• Establish a Fundamentals of Forestry Advisory
Initiatives
Program Committee to advance the establishment of
the Learning Centre at the Woss Lake School
• Work with the Namgis First Nation to undertake a
Community to Community Forum
• Work with Tourism Vancouver Island, VINTAC,
District of Port Hardy and other stakeholders to
establish a steering committee to coordinate
improvements to the North Coast Trail
• Act as Co-Chairman of the Tourism Vancouver Island
2018 Convention committee.
• Help develop a new business plan for the Vancouver
Island North Training and Attraction Society
Objective 2: Build community capacity.
• Proactively prepare proposals for future grant aid
2017 Goals
opportunities
• Design a Memorial Gazebo at the Nimpkish Valley
Heritage Park
• Construct a public washroom at the BC ferries dock in
Sointula

Progress
On-going.
Completed

Completed
Completed.
Conference
scheduled for Sept.
2018
Completed
First intake in April
2018
Scheduled for
March

On-going.
Complete
Complete
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• Design a structure in Coal Harbour to house the
Hornsby Crawler
• Negotiate final documents for the divestiture of the
wharf at Quatsino from Transport Canada
New 2018 Community
• Complete funding campaign and construction of the
Capacity Initiatives
for the Memorial Gazebo at the Nimpkish Valley
Heritage Park.
• Complete and install historical and memorial panels
for the Gazebo
• Complete construction of the shelter for the Hornsby
Crawler in Coal Harbour
• Assist with the planning and funding for construction
of huts on the North Coast Trail
• Assist to secure funding for a review of historical
buildings in Sointula
• Subject to approval of a funding application to the BC
Rural Development Fund, implement a renovation
program at the Woss lake School to accommodate
community partners.
• Negotiate a final acquisition agreement with
Transport Canada for the transfer of the Quatsino
Wharf to the Regional District, including payment of a
grant, application to MFLNR for tenure and adoption
of a by law to establish a local service area
Objective 3: Enhance the regional profile.
• Update community profiles to incorporate new
2017/18 Goals
census and other data
• Work with VINTAC on visitor surveys.
• Promote the interests of the region with BC Ferries
and other Provincial bodies and agencies.
• Represent the Regional District at economic forums
and workshops throughout Vancouver Island and the
Province.
Objective 4: Promote Vancouver Island North.
• Continued support of Vancouver Island North Tourism
2017 Goals
in 2017 with ongoing grant management, contract
oversight and a further $11,000 of taxation
requisition.
• The RDMW Rural Tourism Action Grant program will
be continued at the current maximum of $2500 per
grant in 2017 for rural areas and Port Alice.
• Promote the Regional District to industry associations
(InFilm, BC Salmon Farmers, etc.) as well as to
individual investors.
• Developed a standard design for trail signs
• Work with a committee to develop an integrated
regional Marketing & Attraction strategy

26

Complete
On-going

On-going
On-going
On-going
On-going

Completed

On-going. 2
approved - Phase III
Rotary Trail and
Quatsino Cemetery
On-going
Completed
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On-going
• Design and construct new signs at the Hoomak rest
stop to celebrate regional First Nations and the North
On-going
Island Marine Corridor
New 2018 Promotional
• Provide administrative, financial and advisory support
Initiatives
for Vancouver Island North Advisory Committee
• Provide financial and design support for 6 trail head
signs, including the Fort Rupert Trail and the Beautiful
Bay Trail
• Retain a consultant to manage the Vancouver Island
North Attraction campaign
Objective 5: Targeted socioeconomic advocacy.
On-going
• Policy
• Continue to apply established policies and criteria in
all communications.
• Work with the Manager of Planning to implement and On-going
refine the Regional Plan
On-going.
• Technological
• Support the broadband initiative by working with
infrastructure
ISP’s and individual communities to design and
facilitate “last mile” solutions.
• Strathcona RD’s Connected Coast project will see the On-going
placement of over 3,400 km of subsea, high-speed
fibre-optic cable from north of Prince Rupert, to Haida
Gwaii, south along the coast to the Vancouver
terminal, then around Vancouver Island. It will
provide the ability for up to 154 communities,
including 23 RDMW communities, to connect to highspeed internet.
• Workforce
• Continue to lobby for improved access and funding to On-going
development
rural-remote cost-recovery programming in postsecondary education and training.
• Work with SD 85, VIU and the North Island College
On-going
Leadership Council to advance opportunities for skills
training.
On-going
• Fisheries
• Lobby as appropriate on fisheries matters where
RDMW Board has carried resolutions.
On- going
• Aquaculture
• Maintain support for continued and improved local
recruitment across the finfish and shellfish
aquaculture sector in the region, particularly in farm
sites and new technologies.
On-going
• Alternative
• Maintain support for construction of Phase II of the
Energy
Cape Scott Windfarm.
• Continue to lobby BC Hydro and provincial leaders for On-going at UBCM
adoption of a green energy strategy that would
include development of run-of-river opportunities
On-going
• Forestry
• Represent the Regional District on forest sector
advisory committees and implement the
recommendations for the Forestry Sector from the
Strategic Sector report.
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Section 2.7 Emergency Planning

Courtney Bransfield began as the new Regional
Emergency Coordinator in January, 2017. She was
soon busy dealing with a diesel fuel spill in the
Broughton Archipelago. In April, a major railway
incident in Woss required mutual aid and support
from multiple North Island fire departments and
Emergency Social Service teams. The incident had a
devastating impact on social and economic wellbeing of Woss and the broader community. The
Woss Fire department lost its ability to provide road
rescue services on Highway 19; Port McNeill’s fire
department stepped in to fill the void and by
November all fire departments in the RDMW were
signatories to a regional fire mutual aid agreement
that was facilitated by North Island Regional
Emergency Program Committee (NIREPC). Sayward,
in Strathcona RD, also contributed by increasing
road rescue service coverage to meet the area
covered by Port McNeill.

The Nimpkish Lake fire was one of several North Island wildfires in 2017.
The Woss incident also demonstrated the lack of capacity on the North Island to deal with Critical
Incident Stress Management. Again, NIREPC coordinated a response to address this problem, resulting in
an application for training funding, that was later approved in December of 2017.
Fire departments were strained throughout the summer season as many members joined the effort to
help fight forest fires in the worst fire season on record in British Columbia. Vancouver Island North
observed several forest fires within the Regional District. This trend is increasing in frequency as the
region continues to experience changes in the local climate, increasing the risk of wildfires, a hazard that
was previously rare.

2017 & Ongoing Emergency Planning Policy/Action
Goals
Provide a smooth transition for a new Coordinator
Ensure that contact lists for key North Island
emergency personnel are comprehensive and up to
date
BCERMS training for all coordinators and key staff
Update the Regional Emergency Plan as needed

100% Courtney Bransfield started as REPC in
January
Work with all NIREPC members to establish and
keep lists up to date. Share lists as updated.
Ongoing.
Document current training levels and encourage
participation in on-line and targeted hosted
training sessions. Ongoing.
After amendment & review by NIREPC, Regional
Mutual Aid Agreement revised and distributed
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Support ESS Teams

to four municipalities and seven First Nations for
renewal.
Coordinate and provide training sessions for one
day local ESS training. Training needs are
ongoing.

2018 Emergency Planning Goals
Improve the capacity of the Emergency Social
Services Teams

Grant application approved for $25,000 for
emergency supplies to rural communities

Improve the North Island’s capacity to deal with
Critical Incident Stress Management (CISM)

Training for up to 30 people approved for April,
2018

Improve the Regional Operations Centre capabilities

Grant application approved for $25,000 for
emergency back up power and improved
communications equipment

Staff: Courtney Bransfield, Emergency Coordinator
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Section 3. Sub-Regional Services
Section 3.1 Transit

In partnership with North Island Community Services Society, the RDMW offers the Mount Waddington
Transit Service including Handidart and the Volunteer Transportation Network.
In 2017, transit ridership and revenues remained consistent relative to 2015 and 2016 trends, despite
the implementation of a late season Saturday service from Coal Harbour to Port Hardy. Despite record
years for the smaller communities of Woss, Alert Bay and Malcolm Island ridership and total trips on the
Volunteer Transportation (VTN) declined 26% due to drops in the larger communities of Port Hardy and
Port McNeill. A barrier for VTN ridership was lifted with the addition of a new VTN lift van that can carry
up to 15 passengers for group trips or as many as 7 wheel chairs. HandyDart ridership met its goal in
2017, rising to 106 uses.

2017 & Ongoing Transit Goals

Increased revenue (fareboxes, ticket/pass sales,
advertising, special group trips & BC Bus Passes
Increased General Ridership, increased use & accuracy of
BC Bus passes
Increased Handidart ridership
Increased VTN ridership
Obtain funding for expanded VTN lift van service

Goal

Actual

31,000

26,788

$74,000

$65,974

100
106
300
268
VIHA approved $25,000
Lift van purchased in December
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Bus Service Expansion for Saturday service to Coal Started in July, 2017
Harbour and Quatsino First Nation
Increase VTN driver pool with representation in all Drivers present in most communities
communities

2018 Transit Goals

Expand the VTN Service to Port Alice

Apply for grants to start pilot service for
spring time
Work with Port McNeill and Port Hardy to
ensure that long term storage space
remains available
After BC Transit funding, determine optimal
routing
Organize & implement

Build dedicated bus storage area
Consider service expansion to Port Hardy Airport
10th Anniversary Celebrations

RDMW Transit Riders & Revenue , 2008-2017
$72,650
$63,563

$73,261

Revenue

$67,474

$65,929

$65,075

$65,974

26029

26788

2016

2017

$64,353

$45,900

$24,861

24471

27121

30589

29216

Riders

26760

27698

2014

2015

19295
8828

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Figure 5: 2008 - 2013 Transit Ridership & Revenues
Transit Service Provider: North Island Community Services Society (Coordinator: Mary Mavis)
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Section 3.2 Chilton Regional Arena

The new electric Zamboni purchased in 2017 has helped meet the zero emissions operations goal.
Progress Towards a Zero Carbon Footprint and Reducing Energy Use:
The Chilton Regional Arena’s boiler was replaced to electric at the end of 2017, ending the facility’s
dependency on propane. The new Zamboni was converted to electric, where its operating costs have
since been offset by solar panels on the new arena roof. Operational and maintenance improvements
completed in 2017 are as follows: Reducing the arena’s power factor and demand charges which either
eliminated or reduced BC Hydro imposed penalties. Arena staff now install and maintain the facility’s
ice with one compressor which has also significantly contributed to reductions in the annual power
demand charges. Energy cost savings from these changes reached almost $60,000 in 2017.
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2017 Chilton Arena Goals Policies/Process
Increase Utilization

Ice Plant Risk Assessment
Certification

Extend the Life of the Arena
Building and Ice Plant

Improve Energy Efficiency and
Reduce Carbon Footprint

Facility Networking

Improve arena scheduling &
advertising practices on social
media. Offering public skating and
stick times during pro-d-days.
Improving relations with the user
groups and the general public.

Outcome

33

The total arena revenue in 2017
saw an 5% increase over 2015.
(Late ice install due to Fall Fairevery 2nd year). Ice Rental +9%.
Image Room, +16%, Advertising
+20%
Revenue 2013: $134,000, 2014:
$136,000, 2015: $153,000 2016:
168,000, 2017:$160,000
Although completed in 2016; the
100% Complete. Next Audit May
continued training of staff is needed 2018
and to complete the always changing Good working relationship with
BCSA and Worksafe
requirements to keep the ice plant
risk assessed.
Developed a Preventative
Ongoing
Maintenance Program for the ice
plant and facility. Addressing any
Decreased ice plant runtime, as a
maintenance related items as they
result compressor rebuilds are
happen to ensure that were not
every 3 years instead of every 2
going to compromise the integrity of years.
the facility and its equipment.
a) Begin the process of obtaining an a) 100% Complete by Sept.,2017
electric Zamboni through gas tax
funding, energy grants and
fundraising.
b) 100% Complete Jan., 2017
b) Install Power Correction
Capacitor
c) Ongoing
c) Continue energy reduction by
developing an arena specific
energy reduction plan and by
educating staff and developing
policies and procedures.
d) Install LED lighting on outside of d) 100% Complete
facility.
e) Study the possibility of installing e) Study revealed by changing
VFD’s on compressor motors to
drive size increased ice plant
provide consistent heat to the
efficiency and reduce our
S.D. heat, lowering our Hydro
monthly demand by 30%.
costs.
Project completed, ROI 12
months. 100% complete
Network with all North Island
Ongoing. Arranged joint
communities; the business
purchases to reduce shipping
community, government; all N.I
costs, have coordinated & hosted
facilities and Regional District
joint training. Ice Scheduling
departments.
Coordination has had positive
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New Facility Roof & Solar
Facility Revitalization

Zamboni Room
Dry Floor Rentals
Image Room Bookings

2018 & Ongoing Chilton
Arena Goals
Arena Slope Barrier

Energy Management Course &
Energy Management Policies
Insulate Brine Lines
Hydro and Energy Efficiencies

Concession
Puck Boards and Board Repair
Summer Ice - Pilot Project

Protect building envelope/ Energy
New puck board on inside of players
benches installed. Also new water
bottle holders installed. The four
main dressing rooms painted
Overhaul of entire room, including
water tanks, piping, and heat system
Another successful Fall Fair was held
September 8-10.
Increased rentals in Image Room

results between Port Alice and
RDMW
100% Completed July, 2017
Installed June 2017. Users very
happy with this addition.
Dressing Room project 100%
complete
100% complete April-June 2017
September 2017
Ongoing. Many first aid courses

Top of cement slope needs
barricade for safety. MIA
recommendation
Certified Energy Management
Course to be taken June 2018.
Policies are In development
Insulate Brine lines
Ice plant temperature set-backs,
training staff, creative thinking.

100% Complete May 2018

Arena Manager is beginning to work
with other department managers
and in other RDMW facilities to find
efficiencies.
Upgrade Coffee equipment. Deep
Fryer rental. More food options to
please users.
Install new puck boards on arena
boards. Replace all rotten wood
Instead of removing ice after
summer schedule, it has been
decided, as a pilot project, to keep
the ice in for 3 additional weeks in
August. This is also because the
Eagles hockey try-outs will be held
in Port McNeill this August, and our
facility will have the early ice this
season

We are beginning to see energy
savings in other facilities and
departments

Course in June, 2018. Ongoing.
Completion date June 2018
Ongoing

100% Complete May 2018
100% Complete April-July
August 2018
Have received August bookings

Staff: Fulltime Gerry Little– Arena Manager; Shana Marshall, Arena Services Coordinator; Dave Vanlerberg, lead
hand. Seasonal/casual Norman Bullock, Mike Popiel, Facility Worker. 4 Part-time Concession and 2 Skate Shop
workers
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Section 4. Local Services

In 2017, upgrades were implemented to various local services across the Regional District, including a
improved capacity for the Coal Harbour Waste Water Treatment Plant.
The Regional District has 24 local services managed by the Manager of Operations, Patrick Donaghy. The
following local services are described below by community, function, goals and outcomes; water
services, sewer services, fire services, and road services.

Section 4.1 Water Services

Woss Water Service: The community of Woss has 196 connections, sourcing its water from two wells.
Operations are carried out by K&K Waterworks and everything went well in 2017.

2017 & Ongoing Woss Policies/Process
Water Goals

Outcomes

Improve operating
efficiencies and emergency
response

Clean Water Wastewater
Fund Application to upgrade
water systems PLCs submitted
in 2016, grant awarded in
2017. To be completed by

To better protect public
safety

Expand water testing to include
microbial activity which can impact
aesthetics in addition to the current
testing on fecal and total coliform
counts.
Utilize funding provided by the Clean
Water Wastewater Fund to improve
water system operations by upgrading
Program Logic Control (PLC) systems

Pilot to be done in 2018 and
will be assessed prior to
completion.
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early 2018.

2018 Woss Water Goals

Policies/Process

Monitor water systems usage

Utilize external water meter to Start identifying leaks in the
monitor flow patterns within the system and unsustainable
system
water
usage
to
make
corrections where required.

Progress

Coal Harbour Water Service: The Coal Harbour Water Service provides potable water to 88 service

connections in Coal Harbour and 92 service connections to Quatsino First Nation. Drawing its water
from Quatse Lake, water is treated by filtering, chlorination and Ultra Violet light. Two large water
storage tanks provide an excellent means of insurance should the water treatment plant need to be
taken off-line for maintenance or other disruptions. Operations are done by contract by Paul Getman.

2017 & Ongoing Coal Policies/Process
Harbour Water Goals

Outcomes

Improve Operating
efficiencies and emergency
response

Utilize funding provided by the Work will commence in 2018.
Clean Water Wastewater Fund to
improve system.

Maintain multi-year knot
weed control program to
protect subsurface
infrastructure.

Work
with
other
partner
organizations (First Nations, Local
Governments, Businesses, private
property
owners,
Provincial
Ministries, etc) to maximize the
amount of resources available to
kill knotweed infestations over a
multi-year commitment.

Improve Operating
efficiencies and emergency
response

Utilize funding provided by the
Clean Water Wastewater Fund to
improve water system operations
by upgrading Program Logic
Control (PLC) systems

Partnerships were maintained
with Quatsino First Nation, the
Ministry of Highways, Ministry
of Social Development, Ministry
of Forests, Lands and Natural
Resources Operations and the
District of Port Hardy. Ongoing
for 2018 will be developing
education and partnership
relationships with partners,
schools and other community
groups to raise awareness about
invasive plant issues.
Design Work completed in
2017. In 2018, the PLCs of the
water treatment plant and the
pumping station will be
upgraded. Also added will be an
automated valve that the PLCs
will be able shut off the flow
from one of the water reservoir
tanks in case of a sudden
unsustainable flow demand on
the system characteristic of a
failure in the distribution mains.

June 20, 2018

36

Regional District of Mount Waddington 2017 Annual Report

Section 4.2 Sewer Services

Woss Sewer Service: The community of Woss has 196 connections and treats its waste water via a

lagoon. Operations are carried out by contractor K&K Waterworks and everything went well in 2017.
The main priority for the Woss sewer service is to:

2017 & Ongoing Woss Policies/Process
Sewer Goals
Improve Operating
efficiencies and emergency
response

Outcomes

Utilize funding provided by the
Clean Water Wastewater Fund to
improve system by upgrading
Program Logic Control (PLC)
systems and tying the system to the
internet.

Solar
powered
lagoon
monitoring station was installed
in 2017. Complete upgrade in
2018 by having the monitoring
station be able through radio
communications report data to
the internet.

Coal Harbour Sewer Service: The Coal Harbour Sewer Service provides sanitary disposal of waste
water for 176 properties within the communities of Coal Harbour and the Quatsino First Nation. Waste
water is treated by primary and secondary processing prior to discharge into Rupert Inlet. A portable
generator set acts as a means of insurance should the lift stations be taken off-line due to power
disruptions. Throughout its existence, the waste water treatment plant has dealt with volumes that
exceed its capacity during peak flow events. In 2017, the RDMW’s application to the CWWF was
successful meaning resources are available to upgrade the system’s Process Logic Controls, double the
waste water treatment plant’s capacity and add sludge dewatering infrastructure. Operations are
carried out by contractor Paul Getman and other than peak flow events, everything went well in 2017.

2017 & Ongoing Coal Policies/Process
Harbour Sewer Goals
Maintain multi-year knot
weed control program to
protect subsurface
infrastructure.

Work with other partner
organizations (First Nations,
Local
Governments,
Businesses, private property
owners,
Provincial
Ministries, etc) to maximize
the amount of resources
available to kill knotweed
infestations over a multiyear commitment.

Improve Operating
efficiencies and emergency
response

Utilize funding provided by
the Clean Water Wastewater
Fund to improve system by
upgrading Program Logic
Control
(PLC)
systems.
Upgrade system capacity by
adding a new DAF tank and

Outcomes
Partnerships are being maintained
with Quatsino First Nation, the
Ministry of Highways, Ministry of
Social Development, Ministry of
Forests, Lands and Natural Resources
Operations and the District of Port
Hardy. Ongoing for 2018 will be
developing education and partnership
relationships with partners, schools
and other community groups to raise
awareness about invasive plant issues.
Improvements funded by the Clean
Water Wastewater Fund (CWWF) to
upgrade wastewater system was
started with the waste water
treatment plant’s layout modified, the
subsurface piping augmented and the
DAF tank received. In 2018, CWWF
June 20, 2018
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changing
process.

2018 & Ongoing Coal
Harbour Sewer Goals

Convert the last unmodified
lift station in the system to
high efficiency pumps and
alter plumbing to ease
maintenance

the

aeration funded work will be completed with
the PLCs replaced, sludge dewatering
infrastructure introduced, the DAF
tank brought online and the waste
water
treatment
plant’s
biogenerators converted to aeration
tanks.

Upgrade Lift Station #4

Upgrade to lift station will commence
upon the completion of the CWWF
projects.

Sointula Sewer Service: The community of Sointula has 320 connections and treats its waste water

using an aeration/clarifier secondary treatment system. Operations are carried out by Alden Barnett
and everything went well in 2017.

2017 & Ongoing Sointula Policies/Process
Sewer Goals
Improve Operating efficiencies
and emergency response

Utilize funding provided by the Clean
Water Wastewater Fund to improve
system operations by upgrading
Program Logic Control (PLC) systems
and improving sludge dewatering
performance.

Outcomes
In 2017, Program Logic
Control (PLC) systems were
upgraded and the power
kiosks replaced. In 2018,
sludge
dewatering
infrastructure
will
be
installed.

Hyde Creek Sewer Service: A service area within Hyde Creek has 51 connections using a forced
pressure collection system and treats its waste water via secondary treatment. Operations are carried
out by contractor Paul Getman and everything went well in 2017.

2017 Hyde Creek Sewer Policies/Process
Goals
Improve Operating
efficiencies and emergency
response

Outcomes

Utilize funding provided by the Clean PLC
upgrades
to
the
Water Wastewater Fund to improve wastewater treatment plant
system operations.
will occur in 2018.
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Section 4.3 Fire Services

Carrying forward from 2017 to 2018, goals common to all fire service departments include the following:
Continue developing administrative procedures to meet the Office of the BC Fire Commissioners
Playbook training standards including the following:
o Document weekly practice activities in the FirePro data management system
o Provide critical training courses, as identified in the Playbook document, within the
RDMW
o Update Operational Guidelines for RDMW Volunteer Fire Departments to meet
Playbook training standards
Increasing recruitment and retention of firefighters from within their communities
Improve management of Post Traumatic Stress Injuries by Better documentation, disseminating
information regarding best practices and improving available resources.
Enhance and strengthen interdepartmental mutual aid network throughout the Regional District by:
o Formalize mutual aid agreements between all departments in the RDMW due to
increasing dependence of communities to utilize neighbouring resources caused by
low volunteerism, using examples developed by other Regional Districts
o Work through the North Island Fire Chiefs Association to increase inter regional
cooperation in training and equipment purchases
o Develop a Critical Incident Stress Management team to support emergency first
responders dealing with trauma encountered in their activities
o Seek an effective program that provides strategies to bolster emotional resiliency
among emergency first responders

Woss Fire Protection Service: The Woss Volunteer Fire Department (VFD) provided fire protection to

the community and responded to Motor Vehicle Accidents (MVA) along Highway 19 between the areas
of coverage served by Sayward and Port McNeill. In April 2017, a catastrophic industrial accident
occurred in Woss which inflicted significant traumatic stress injuries to members of the Woss Volunteer
Fire Department, significantly impacting its operational and response capacity. Since, the department
has for the foreseeable future reduced the emergency services it provides to structural fire suppression
and medical assistance. The department’s chief is Rob Glass.

2017 & Ongoing Woss Policies/Process
Fire Goals
2017: Continue to work to

meet the Office of the BC Fire
Commissioner’s Playbook
training standards.

Outcomes

o Document weekly practice
o Fire-pro system is
activities in the FirePro data
continually being improved
management system
with single report being
o Provide critical training courses, as
developed that summarizes
identified in the Playbook
training status of all
document, within the RDMW
members.
o Update Operational Guidelines for o Members attended Interior
RDMW Volunteer Fire
Operations Team Leader
Departments to meet Playbook
course
training standards.
In 2018:
o Fire Chief will be attending
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Attempt to resume former
emergency services to
previous levels.

2018 & Ongoing Woss
Goals

Restore emergency services to
previous levels.

Work towards recruiting new
members and provide training
opportunities. Provide support for
members dealing with traumatic
stress injuries.

Work towards recruiting new
members and provide training
opportunities. Provide support for
members dealing with traumatic
stress injuries.

the Fire Chiefs Association
of British Columbia
Conference in Victoria
o Approve Operational
Guidelines
o New Fire Chief appointed in
second half of 2017.
Department beginning to
reform around younger
members.

o Five members will be
attending Live Fire training
and an auto extraction
course is planned to be held
in Woss
o Significant capital
investments to be made in
2018

Coal Harbour Fire Protection Service: The Coal Harbour Volunteer Fire Department (VFD) provides
fire protection to the community and the Quatsino Reserve. The department’s chief is Andrew Hory.

2017 Coal Harbour Fire Policies/Process
Goals
Continue to work to meet the
Office of the BC Fire
Commissioner’s Playbook
training standards.

Outcomes

o Document weekly practice
o Fire-pro system is
activities in the FirePro data
continually being improved,
management system
will add single report being
developed that summarizes
o Provide critical training courses, as
training status of all
identified in the Playbook
members.
document, within the RDMW
o Update Operational Guidelines for o Members attended Interior
RDMW Volunteer Fire
Operations Team Leader
Departments to meet Playbook
course
training standards.
In 2018:
o Fire Chief will be attending
the Fire Chiefs Association
of British Columbia
Conference in Victoria
o Approve Operational
Guidelines
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Sointula Fire Protection Service: This service provided emergency services to the community of
Sointula throughout 2017. The department’s chief is Tom Trimmer.

2017 & Ongoing Sointula Policies/Process
Fire Goals

Outcomes

Investigate with the Sointula
RDMW will continue to initiate No hydrants were installed in
Water Improvement District
discussions with the Board of the 2017.
regarding the opportunities of Sointula Water Improvement District
integrating fire hydrants into
in 2016.
the community water
distribution network.
Work to meet the Office of
o Document weekly practice
o Fire-pro system is
the BC Fire Commissioner’s
activities in the FirePro data
continually being improved,
Playbook training standards.
management system
will add single report being
developed that summarizes
o Provide critical training courses, as
training status of all
identified in the Playbook
members.
document, within the RDMW
o Update Operational Guidelines for o Members attended Interior
RDMW Volunteer Fire Departments
Operations Team Leader
to meet Playbook training
course
standards
In 2018:
o Deputy Fire Chief will be
attending the Fire Chiefs
Association of British
Columbia Conference in
Victoria
o Approve Operational
Guidelines.

Hyde Creek Fire Protection Service: This service provided emergency services to the communities of
Hyde Creek, Nimpkish Heights, Twin Peaks and neighbouring properties throughout 2017. The fire
department’s chief at the start of 2017 was Cam Brady stepped back from the service and Doug Von
Schilling has taken over the Chief’s role. In the aftermath of a catastrophic industrial accident in Woss
which resulted in the Woss Volunteer Fire Department requiring assistance in providing fire protection
coverage, Hyde Creek now works in collaboration with the Port McNeill Volunteer Fire Department to
provide support when needed.

2017 Hyde
Goals

Creek

Fire Policies/Process

Continue to work to meet the
Office of the BC Fire
Commissioner’s Playbook
training standards.

Outcomes

o Document weekly practice activities o Fire-pro system is
in the FirePro data management
continually being improved;
system
will add single report being
developed that summarizes
o Provide critical training courses, as
identified in the Playbook
training status of all
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Purchase tanker truck
Enhance emergency fire
suppression water resources.
Purchase tanker truck

2018 & Ongoing Hyde
Creek Goals

Enhance emergency fire
suppression water resources.
Enhance road rescue skills to
better assist Port McNeill.
Expand and Upgrade Fire hall

document, within the RDMW
members.
o Update Operational Guidelines for o Members attended Interior
RDMW Volunteer Fire Departments
Operations Team Leader
to meet Playbook training
course
standards.
o Operational Guidelines are
still in development.
In 2018:
o Senior Officers will be
attending the Fire Chiefs
Association of British
Columbia Conference in
Victoria
o Approve Operational
Guidelines.
Determine specifications, request
Request for Proposal deferred
for proposals, arrange financing and to 2018.
prepare for purchase.
Access resources to increase the
Used tanks from Sointula
emergency water supplies in lieu of COOP have been acquired and
no public water system with
placed at fire hall.
hydrants.
Ongoing determine specifications,
Request for Proposal will
request for proposals, arrange
target for issue in 2018.
financing and prepare for purchase.

Access resources to increase the
emergency water supplies in lieu of
no public water system with
hydrants.
Enroll members in courses and
increase inter departmental training
with Port McNeill.
Develop proposal for Gas Tax
Funding

Gas Tax proposal to be
submitted under the Disaster
Mitigation criteria
Members
will
continue
training to enhance skills.
Proposal submitted under the
Disaster
Mitigation
and
Energy Systems Criteria
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Section 4.4 Solid Waste Services

Local solid waste services provide garbage collection that is often coupled with recycling and waste
transfer stations. In all cases, the services are designed to complement the Regional Solid Waste
Service.

Woss Solid Waste Collection Service: The Woss’ solid waste service involves a weekly curbside

garbage collection with 143 clients and a manned transfer station and recycling depot. The depot allows
residents to drop off a wide range of materials that include electronics to cardboard.

2017 & Ongoing Woss Solid Policies/Process
Waste Goals
Improve efficiency of the facility

Increase opportunities for
diversion

2018: Increase opportunities for
diversion

Outcomes

Increase
effectiveness
and Shelves were constructed in
organization of facility by early 2017
installing shelving to increase
shed effectiveness.
Continue
to
assess Introduced a new textile
environmental/ business cases to diversion
program
in
establish new diversion streams
conjunction
with
the
Diabetes
Association
of
Canada.
Continue
to
assess Recycle BC will use the Woss
environmental/ business cases to depot in 2018 in its pilot
establish new diversion streams
program to expand the
diversion of flexible plastic.

Coal Harbour Solid Waste Collection Service: The community of Coal Harbour has 93 properties
whose garbage and curb side recycling is picked up on alternating weeks and taken to 7 Mile Landfill and
Recycling Center. Operations are carried out by Fox Disposal and everything went well in 2017.

Malcolm Island Solid Waste Collection Service: The Malcolm Island solid waste service garbage

collection to 438 households every two weeks with a two can limit and a manned recycling
depot/transfer station which has openings three times a week. The depot allows residents to drop off a
wide range of materials that include materials from electronics to cardboard.

2017 & ongoing Malcolm Policies/Process
Island Solid Waste Goals
Increase opportunities for
diversion

2018 & Ongoing Malcolm
Island Goals

Improve efficiency of the facility

Outcomes

Continue to assess environmental/ Introduced a new textile
business cases to establish new diversion program in
diversion streams
conjunction with the
Diabetes Association of
Canada.

Increase
effectiveness
and
organization of facility by installing

A
second
lean-to
structure will be added to
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shelving
to
effectiveness.
Increase opportunities for
diversion

increase

shed

the recycling depot to
add storage and the
forklift will be replaced.

Continue to assess environmental/ • Recycle BC will use the
business cases to establish new
Woss depot in 2018 in
diversion streams
its pilot program to
expand the diversion of
flexible plastic.
• A organic waste drop
off site was added to
the transfer station to
reduce dumping in the
woods and curtail the
spread
of
invasive
plants
in
the
environment.
This
initiative
will
be
augmented by a greater
public
awareness
program.

Winter Harbor Solid Waste Collection Service: This service became active in early 2011 with the

construction of the Winter Harbour solid transfer station. Two specially designed trailers allow residents
to deposit their waste conveniently in the communities of Winter Harbour and WD Moore Camp. When
these trailers are full, they are hauled to the transfer station and the contents placed in a large covered
bin and eventually taken to 7MLRC. In 2014, recycling of packaging and printed paper was commenced
in Winter Harbour via a depot established at WD Moore’s camp. With the closing down of the WD
Moore camp in 2017, the RDMW will be contracting the service to exclusively in Winter Harbour.

2017 & Ongoing Winter Policies/Process
Harbour Solid Waste
Goals
Continue to invest in
opportunities to improve
efficiencies in recycling

2018 & Ongoing Winter
Harbour Solid Waste
Goals
Continue to invest in
opportunities to improve
efficiencies in recycling

Outcomes

Efforts will be made to integrate
additional stewardship programs into
the logistic network established by
Green By Nature.

No new programs
introduced in 2017.

were

Efforts will be made to integrate
additional stewardship programs into
the logistic network established by
Green By Nature.

New recycling stream being
introduced for flexible plastic
which will be added to Winter
Harbour’s opportunities in
2018
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Rationalize solid waste
service in result of WD Moore
camp shutting down

Focus service delivery to Winter
Harbour exclusively

Remove trailer in WD Moore
camp to Winter Harbour.

Quatsino Solid Waste Collection Service: This service was established as a local service in 2016,
following the approval of an amendment to the Regional Solid Waste Management Plan by the Minister
of Environment. The local service will result in the community’s garbage being brought to 7 Mile Landfill
and Recycling Center for disposal. Currently residents take their garbage for disposal at an unpermitted
dump site. Since 2014, a recycling depot has been operating at the black smith shop building adjacent
to the Quatsino Museum that handles packaging and printed paper. This was funded by an agreement
with Recycle BC and by interim funding by the Regional Board.

2017 Quatsino
Waste Goals

Solid Policies/Process

Construct a permanent
recycling depot/transfer
station in the community of
Quatsino

Recycling Depot/Transfer Station
design and construction will be
guided by past experience gained
from Woss, Malcolm Island and
Winter Harbour. Funding will be from
gas tax sources.

Outcomes
Draft design completed for
proposed public meeting.
Prefabricated shed has been
received. Approval gained
for clearing the land at the
end of 2017 from the
Province
after
lengthy
discussion with Quatsino First
Nation.
Construction will be done in
the summer of 2018.

2018 & Ongoing
Quatsino Solid Waste
Goals

Update operating &
Regulatory Bylaws

Establishment of a rules and
regulations bylaw to govern the
service and the engagement with an
individual or organization to operate
the facility.

Adopt
operations
&
regulatory bylaw; establish
local service management
committee.

Work is underway to build the Quatsino Transfer station.
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Section 4.5 Local Road Services

Local road services provide access maintenance and upgrades to specifically defined stretches of roads
defined by the service area.
Telegraph Cove Road Service: The Telegraph Cove road service covers the industrial road from the end
of the Beaver Harbour road to the old TimberWest shop. Annually, the service focusses mainly on snow
removal in the winter and vegetation/ditchline maintenance. In 2015 the establishment bylaw for the
service was redone and extended the service till 2025.

2017
&
Ongoing Policies/Process
Telegraph Cove Road
Goals
2017: Repair slide damage
that occurred down slope of
road at TimberWest sort.

Work with TimberWest to utilize
onsite resources to carry out repair.

Outcomes
PGeo assessed site and
provided
recommended
course of actions. Agreement
made with TimberWest to
cost share repairs.
Slide
rehabilitation completed in
2017.
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REGIONAL DISTRICT OF MOUNT WADDINGTON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year End December 3L,2OL7

lndependent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Regional District of Mount Waddington

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Regional District of Mount Waddington, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31 , 2017 , and the statements of operations and
accumulated surplus, , changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Respon si bí lity for the Consolidated Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

ln our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Regional
District of Mount Waddington as at December 31, 2017 and the results of its operations, changes in net financial
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

/4/1/P

Nanaimo, British Columbia
May 15, 2018

LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants

Suite 400 MNP Place, 345 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, British Columbia, VgR 586, Phone: (250) 753-8251

MNI?"

Regional District of Mount Waddington

Management's Responsibility for the Financia¡ Statements

The accompanying fínancial statements of the Regional District of Mount Waddington are the
responsibility of management and have been prepared in compliance, and in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards. This responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting
principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurements of transactions in which
objectivejudgmentisrequired. Asummaryofthesignificantaccountingpoliciesisdescribed¡nNotelto
the financ¡al statementsln dischargíng its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financialstatements, management
designs and maintains the necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financíalinformation is available on
a timely basis for preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management.

The Board of Directors meets w¡th management and the external auditors to review the financial
statements and discuss any significant financíal report¡ng or internal control matters prior to the Board's
approval of the financial statements.
The financíal statements have been audited by MNP LLP, independent external auditors appointed by the
Board. The accompanying lndependent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their
examination and their opiníon on the Regional District's financial statements.

Theresa

Treasurer
May 8, 2018

CPA, CGA
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Regional District of Mount Waddington
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 3f-,2Ot7
2017

2016
(restated note 77)

FinancialAssets
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
lnventories for resale
Municipal recoverable debt

(note 3)
(note 4)
(note 5)

6,599,154
1,000,020
764,559
4,525
2,388,453

(note 9)

L0,756,7L1
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Member municipality debt

(note 6)
(note 7)
(note 8)
(note 9)

43O,592

Net FinancialAssets
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets
Prepaid expenses

Accumulated Surplus
Contingent Liabil ities

(note to)

tt)

L0,241,370

397,254
108,319

t,gzt,o3g

2,388,453

2,906,0L6

5,368,695

5,232,628

5,399,026

5,008,742

tI,943,735

L1,489,249
23,446

11.,977,917

LL,5t2,695

t7,365,943

L6,52L,437

(note ta)

Th eresa F
Treasurer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

t

4L0,783
3,609
2,906,0L6

627,64t
t,g2'-,ggg

34,L82

(note

6,920,962

Regional District of Mount Waddington
Statement of Operations
For the year ended December

Revenue
Taxation
Grants
Sales of services
lnterest earned
Other revenue

3I,2Ot7

20L7 Budget
(note 79)

2077

20L6

2,955,300
1,433,900
t,2o3,9OO

2,9t4,795
57!,662
L,232,996

L,092,700

2,86L,546
1,o5g,g2o
1,890,105
85,801
136,766

6,595,900

6,033,039

5,393,755

t,o3o,7oo

892,335
376,765

9t7,ttz

t,200,826
t37,233
1.,595,4t9
203,228

t,tog,t26

64,229
700,173

Expenses

General government services
Protective services
Parks, Recreational, & Cultural
Environ mental development
Environmental health services
Economic development
Regionaltransit
Utility services

328,800
1,L09,900
143,500

Accumulated

nn¡

Accumulated surplus, End of the

5,47O,OOO

266,856
515,870
5,199,532

146,527
1,569,480
242,399
223,5L9
544,102
5,042,407

L,1L5,800

844,506

34L,348

t,2!7,900
1,089,800
296,000
263,400

Annualsurplus

L6,52r,437 t6,52t,437

of the

year

(note

L1) L7,637,237 17,365,943

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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290,L43

l_6,1.80,099

L6,52L,437

Regional District of Mount Waddington
Statement of Change in Net FinancialAssets
For the year ended December 3t, 2Ot7
20L7 Budget
(note 19)

2077

2016

Annualsurplus

1,115,800

844,506

34L,348

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Disposals of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Change in prepaid expenses

L,472,000

1t,26t,8441
5,242
8O2,tL7

lncrease in Net Financial Assets

(549,3291

(10,6371

L,L36
783,403
(22,499)

2,587,800

379,384

554,059

Net Financial Assets, Beginning of the year

5,OO9,642

5,008,642

4,454,583

Net Financial Assets, End of the year

7,596,442

5,399,026

5,O09,642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
3

Regional District of Mount Waddington
Statement of Cash Flows
year
For the
ended December 3L, 2Ot7
201_6
2077
Operating Transactions
Annual surplus
Non-cash items included in surplus:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
lncrease Decrease in accumulated su

lus

844,506

34L,348

8O2,LL7

783,403

242
1,651,965

L,L24,75t

5

Change in non-cash working capital balances related to operations

(lncrease) Decrease in accounts receivable
(lncrease) Decrease in inventories held for resale
(Decrease) in accounts payable
lncrease (Decrease) in deferred revenue

(3s3,7761
(e16)
33,338
5L9,322
100,960

lncrease in other liabilities
(lncrease) Decrease in accounts receivable

lLO,737l

Cash provided by operating transactions

(59,057)
(s0)
(376,613)
(40,519)

3L4,629
(22,4991

1,940,056

940,642

Capital Transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets

(.t,261,8441

(548,L93)

lnvestment Transactions
Acquisition of long term investments

(1,000,0201

Financing Transactions
Repayment of short and long-term debt

(828,0791,

Net change in cash and temporary investments
Cash and cash equivalents, Beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, End

ofthe year

(note

3)

(321,8081

(435,630)

6,920,962

7,356,592

6,599,154

6,920,962

Cash and cash equivalents comprised of:
Cash

2,t58,tlr

Short-term investments

4,44t,043
6,599,154

lnterest paid on debt for the year totalled 5406 (2016 - 571,418).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fìnancial statements
4

6,482,483
438,479
6,920,962

Regional D¡str¡ct of Mount Waddington
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017

The Regional District was incorporated in 1966 under the British Columbia Local Government Act. lts principle act¡vities are the provision
and coordination of local government serv¡ces to the residents of four unincorporated (rural) areas and four municipalities within its
boundaries. These services include general government administration, fire protection and emergency response planning, parks and
recreat¡on, env¡ronmental development, environmental health services, economic development, reg¡onaltransit, water serv¡ces, and sewer
services,

t,

REPORTING ENTIW

The financial statements of the reporting entity of the Regional Distr¡ct of Mount Waddington reflect the assets, liabilities, reserves,
revenue and expenses of the following services:

¡

.

General Government
o General Government Administration
o Regional Emergency Management (All areas)
o ElectoralArea Administration (areas A, B, Ç D)
o Local Community Commission (Coal Harbour)
o Road Ma¡ntenance (Telegraph Cove)
Protective Services

o
o
o
o

¡

o
o
¡
.
.

o
o
o
o
o
o

Coal Harbour Fire
Coal Harbour Streetlights

Sointula Fire
Sointula Streetl¡ghts
Hyde Creek Fire
Nimpkish Heights Streetlights
Woss F¡re
Woss Streetlights
Winter Harbour Streetlights
E911 (All areas)

Parks, Recreation, and Cultural

o LibraryServices
o Recreation (all areas)
o Community Recreation (Hyde Creek, Malcolm lsland, and Woss)
o Arena (Port McNeill, D and Defined Area of Electoral Area C)
o Parks
o Heritage
EnvironmentalDevelopment

o
o
o

lnspect¡on
Regional Planning (All areas)
Electoral Area Planning (All areas except Port Hardy)

Environmental Health Services

o
o

Solid Waste (All areas)
Garbage Removal (Malcolm lsland, Woss, Coal Harbour, Winter Harbour, Quats¡no)
Economic Development (All areas)
RegionalTransit (All areas except Area B and Port Alice)
Ut¡l¡ties (Water and Sewer services):
o Coal Harbour Water
o Coal HarbourSewer
o Sointula Sewer
o Woss Water

o

o

Woss Sewer
Hyde CreekSewer

ln 2013, the Regional District entered into a F¡r€ Protect¡on Agreement with the Quats¡no First Nation for the period January

1,2013toDecember31,2018,

lnexchangefortheuseofafiretruck,theRegional Districtagreedtoprovidefireservicesto

the Quatsino First Nation.

5

Regional District of Mount Wadd¡ngton
Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financialstatements of the Regional District of Mount Waddington are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector account¡ng standards, as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional
Accountants Canada. Significant accounting policies adopted by the Regional D¡strict are as follows:

(a)

Basis of accounting

The accrual basis for recording revenue and expenses has been followed, whereby revenue is recognized in the period in which
the transact¡ons or events occurred that gave rise to the revenue, and expenses are recognized in the period the goods and
services are acquired and a liability is incurred, whether or not a current cash flow is associated with the transaction.

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents

with a term to matur¡ty of 90 days or less at acquisition. Pooled
investments of the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) are carried at cost, which approximates fair market value.
Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments

(c)

(d)

Financiallnstruments
Financial instruments consistofcash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, municipal recoverable debt, accounts payable,
other liabilities, investments, and member municipality debt. Unless otherwise noted, ¡t is management's opinion that the
Regional District is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk aris¡ng from these financial instruments.
TangibleCapitalAssets
Tangible Capital Assets, comprised of capital assets and capital work-in-progrest are recorded at original cost in the period
acquiredandarecategorizedaccordingtotype. CapitalassetscostinglessthanSl,000areexpensed.
Amortizationischargedin
the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.
Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset commencing in the year the asset ¡s
put into service. Estimated useful lives will not exceed 40 years unless it can be clearly demonstrated that the useful life is
expected to exceed 40 years.

Amort¡zat¡on periods for the asset categories of the Regional D¡strict are generally as follows
Engineering
30to 4oyears
30 to 40 years
Machinery &
20 to 30 years

Structures
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

10

to 15 years

Contributed capitalassets are capitalized at fair market value as revenue when received

(e)

(f)

RevenueRecognition
Revenue is recorded in the period in which the transactions or events that gave rise to the revenue occur. Externally restricted
amounts that have been received from non-government sources in advance of services being rendered are recorded as deferred
revenues until the Regional District discharges the obligations that led to the collection offunds. Taxes are recognized in the year
levied. Sale of services are recognized in the year that the service is provided or the amount is earned, provided the amount can
be estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Government grants with or without eligibility criteria are recognized as
revenue in the period in which the grant is authorized and any eligibil¡ty criter¡a have been met except where the transfer gives
rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability, in which case revenue is recognized as the liability is settled.
Contributions are recorded when the event giving rise to the contribution occurs. lnvestment ¡ncome, taxation penalties, and
other earnings are recorded in the year they are earned.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PSAS requires management to make when necessary estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the accounting period.

Significant use of such estimates have been made by management in the determination of the liability for landfill post closure
costs, the est¡mated net recoverable amount of accounts receivable, the estimated useful life of tangible capital assets for
amortlzation purposes, and accrued employee vested benefits, Actual results will differ. Liabilities for contaminated sites are
estimated based on the best information available regarding potentially contaminated s¡tes that the Regional District may be
responsible for.
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2,

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOIICIES(continued)

(C)

liability for contam¡nated s¡tes
A liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized at the best estimate of the amount required to remediate the
contaminated site when contamination exceeding an environmental standard exists; the Regional D¡str¡ct is either directly
responsible or accepts responsibility; ¡t is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and a reasonable estimate of
the amount is determinable, The best estimate of the liability includes all costs directly attributable to remediation activities and
is reduced by expected net recoveries based on information available at December 3t,20L7.
At each financial report¡ng date, the Regional District reviews the carrying amount of the liability. Any revisions required to the
amount previously recognized is accounted for in the period revisions are made. The Regional District continues to recognize the
liability until it is settled or otherwise extinguished. Disbursements made to settle the liability are deducted from the reported
liability when they are made.

3.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENTS

20!7
Cash

MFA- Bond Fund
Term Deposits

4,

s

2076

s

2,1s8,111

6,485,940

435,022

437,275
4,OO3,768

s 6,s99,1s4 5

6,920,962

INVESTMENTS

lnvestments consist of a 2%,2-year fixed term deposit of $1,000,000 with Concentra Financial maturing on June 2019.

5

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABTE

2017

Accounts Receiva ble Trade
Due from Hospital District
lnterest receivable
Allowance for doubtful accounts

S

201.6

S

øst,t91.
91,400

¡zs,sog
69,000

35,768

s 764,ss9 s

410,783

During the year, administrat¡ve support services of 570,400 (2016, 569,000) were provided to the Regional Hospital District by the
Regional District of Mount Waddington. lncluded in the 591,400 total is S21,000 for a cost sharing project between the Regional and
Hospital Districts for new account¡ng software.

6.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The Board members of the Regional District of Mount Waddington sit on the board of the Mount Waddington Regional Hospital D¡strict.
The Regional District and the Regional Hospital District are separate legal entities as defined by separate letters patent and authorized
by separate legislation.
Regional Hospital District cash inflows occasionally are received in the name of the Regional District instead of the Regional Hospital
District. Accordingly, cash balances held on behalf of the Regional Hospital District at year end are included in the consolidated bank

balanceoftheRegionalDistrict, AccountsPayableincludesS0asatDecember3L,20LT

7

(2016,5110,611)duetotheHospitalDistrict.

DEFERRED REVENUE

2076

2017

(restated note 77)

Devel opment Cost Cha rges

57,634

s

Miscel laneous Grants
Treaty Advi sory Services

s

553,699
16,308

627,64! S

5
7

57,O33

34,978
16,308
108,319
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8.

OTHER TIABITITIES

20t6

20!7

(restoted note 77)
Empl oyee vested benefi ts

s

Landfill Closure and Post Closure (note 8 a)
Woss Community Capital Reserves
Funds held for other organ¡zations

(a)

51,299
L,623,s48

s

t36,282
L10,870

S

1,921,99s

137,463

t,474,825
t34,857
73,894

S

1,821,039

Londfill Closure Costs and Post Closure Costs

ln accordance with PS 3270, liabilities with respect to permanently closing and monitoring a landfill are incurred as landfill
capacity is used. Landfill closure costs include placing a permanent cover over the face of the landf¡ll. Post Closure
maintenance costs include landfill gas monitoring, leachate collection system operation and general site ma¡ntenance for a
period of 30 years after the landfill is permanently closed.
TheLandfill currentlycons¡stsofthreephases. Phasel&2arecurrentlynotacceptingmaterial andusedcapacityisl98,50l
m3 which will be increased when Phase 4 and Phase 5 are opened. Phase 3A is currently not accepting material and used
capacity is 57,200 m3 which will be increase when Phase 3C is closed. Phase 38 is open for use and based on the most recent
survey complete in April 2OL8,8,299 m3 of airspace has been used of P3A total capacity of 57,500 m3,
Landfill closurecostsareestimatedbasedontheopenareaof remainingunusedcapacityofthelandfill site. Landfill Closure
for Phase 3A at 5399,386 (2016,5399,734), and for

costs for Phase 1 and 2 are estimated at5272,004 (2016, 5317,585) and
P hase 38 ar. s57,457 (2016, s0) for a tota I of 57 28,845 (2016, s7 17,3t}l

Post Closure Maintena nce costs a re est¡mated using several factors, including the percentage of landfill capacity already filled,
the probable closure date, the regulated monitoring period, the estimated annual maintenance costs, and a present value
discount rate which is the difference between the long-term MFA borrowing rate and the s-year average Consumer Price
lndex. Thecurrentest¡mateforannual PostClosureMaintenancecostsisSS94,T0L 120\6,5757,505) basedongg%ofthe
capacity of Phase L&2,99% of Phase 34, and 14% of Phase 38 being used, final closure being 2064 for Phase L & 2 and 2037
for Phase 34, inflation of 2.2% and a discount rate o1 3.02%.

Total Post Closure Maintenance costs are estimated to be 5263,758 (2076,5332,9741 for Phase 1 & 2; 5551,589 (2016,
5424,5211; and 579,354 (2016, S0) for Phase 38. Post Closure Maintenance costs are expected to be funded by annual budget
appropriations in the years in which they are incurred.

(b)

Municipøl Pension Plqn
The Regional District of Mount Waddington and its employees contribute to the Mun¡cipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly
trusteed pension plan. The Board of Trustees, represent¡ng plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the
management of the Plan, including investment of the assets and administration of benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer
contributory pension plan. Basic pension benefits provided are based on a formula. The Plan has about 193,000 active members
and approximately 90,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 38,000 contr¡butors from local governments.
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of plan funding.
The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary's
calculated contr¡but¡on rate is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member

andemployercontributionssufficienttoprovidebenefitsforaveragefutureentrantstotheplan.
Thisratemaybeadjusted
for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuar¡al
liability.
The most recent actuarial valuation as at December 31,20!5, indicated a52.224 billion funding surplus for basic pension
benefits on a going concern basis. Because of the 2015 basic account actuarial valuation surplus and pursuant to the joint
trustee agreement, 51.927 billion was transferred to the rate stabil¡zation account and 5297 million of the surplus ensured

therequiredcontributionratesremainedunchanged. Thenextvaluationwill beasatDecember3T,20IS,withtheresults
available in 2019. The Regional District of Mount Waddington paid S117,495 (2016, S108,820) for employer contributions to
the Plan in fiscal 2017.
Employers participating in the Plan record their pens¡on expense as the amount of employer contributions made during the
fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued
assets for the Plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
the individual employers participating in the Plan.
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9.

MEMBER MUNICIPALIW DEBT
Pursuant to the locol Government Acf, the Regional D¡str¡ct acts as the agency through which its member municipalities and other
jurisdictions borrow funds from the Municipal Finance Authority. The annual cost of servicing this debt is recovered entirely from the
borrowing jurisdiction. However, the Regional D¡strict is joint and severally liable for this debt in the event of default.

2017

Port

Al

¡ce

Port McNe¡ll
Port Hardy
s

10.

20L6

473,ss5 S s24,103
s04,438 52tp66
L,4rO,460 L,622,849
237,098

S

Alert Bay

2.388.4s3

s

2,906,016

TANGIBLE CAPITAT ASSETS
Accumulated Amort¡zat¡on

Cost

Work ¡n
Ooenins

Addit¡ons Proeress

t6,627

Land

r,769

6,t7L

Buildi ngs

3,242,257

350,766

30,2r2

Vehicles

930,784
4,706,776

230,482
10,879

68,268
49,99L
515,075

Land lmprovements

Machinery & equ¡pment

(29,618)
(7,4891

Engineer¡ng Structures

14,655,048

Tota

23.ss3.261 s98.298 663.s46 (37.r07t

I

Work

Open¡ng Additlons
Land

16,627
7,940
3,623,235

2,0O2,930

116,38s

969,434
4,979,760

631,664

t,778,486

59,228
r98,543

7,650,931

427,96t

24.

Disoosals

Endins

7,940

,998 t2,O64,OLt 802,LL7

2,rr93ß

D¡sposals Ending

661,274

308,161

(2,247],

t,974,782
8,078,892

3,004,978

r,769

7,toz,tto

131,8651 12,834.263 11,943,735

Opening Amort¡zation Disposals

Ending

16,627

r,769

1,503,920

(29,618)

¡n

Progress

Net book
value 2017
16,627

15.181,002

16,627

Land lmprovements

tt.

Openlna Amortizat¡on

D¡soosals

Net book
value 2016
16,627
L,769
L,239,327

Build¡ngs

3,L45,790

96,467

3,242,257

1,893,768

t09,L62

Vehicles
Machinery & equipment

905,97L
4,476,452

24,873
23L,460

930,784
4,706,776
t4,655,047

572,027
1,590,540
7,224,273

59,617

631,664

299,L21

L87,946
426,658

r,778,486

2,928,290
7,004,116

Eng¡neering Structures

L4,460,227

ß4,82r

Total

23.00s.067

s49.329

(1,136)

11,280,608

(1.136)

783,403

ACCUMUTATED SURPTUS
The Accumulated Surplus consists of individual serv¡ces surpluses (deficits) and reserves as follows:

2017
Equity in Tangible Capital
Operating
Statutory reserves funds

funds

Assets 5 71,943,735

2,672,185

2.750.023
s 17.365.943

9

2016
S 11,489,249

2,334,333
2,697,855
516,521.,437

2,O02,930

7,650,931

12,064,0[

tL,ß9,249
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t2,

CoMMUNTTY WORKS FUNDS (GAS TAX)
Community Works Funds are a component of the Gas Tax Agreement funding provided by the Government of Canada, through
the Union of British Columbia Municipalities. Gas tax funding is restricted to certain public transit, community energy, water,
wastewater, solid waste, and capacity-building projects as specified in the funding agreement. Community Works Funds are
recognized as revenue when received and transferred to reserve funds until used for eligible projects. The following is a
continuity of Community Works Funds for the Regional D¡strict.

2016

2077

Opening balance of unspent funds
Add: Amount received duri ng the year
I nterest ea rned
Less: Amount spent on eligible projects

5

910,630
212,592

5

10,013
(L39,277],

s 993,9s8 s

733,6s7

2r0,397
9,200
(42,6251

910,630

13.

ENVIRONMENTAT REGUTATIONS
The Regional District is subject to environmental regulations which apply to a number of its operations. These regulations may require
future expend¡tures to meet applicable standards and subject the Regional District to possible penalties for violations. Amounts
required to meet these obligations will be charged to operat¡ons when incurred and/or when they can be reasonably estimated.

t4.

NORTH ISTAND 911 CORPORATION
A 91L emergency call answering service is provided by the North lsland 911. Corporat¡on, which is owned by the Regional Districts of
Comox Valley, Strathcona, Mount Wadd¡ngton, Alberni Clayoquot Nanaimo and Powell River. The shares in the corporation are owned
as

follows:

Clayoquot
Valley
Strathcona
Mount Waddington
Nana¡mo
Powell River

Alberni

3 shares

Comox

6 shares
4 shares

l

share

5 shares
2 shares

The Regional Districfs investment in shares of the North lsland 9-1-1 Corporat¡on is recorded at cost as ¡t does not fall under the
definition of a government partnership (PS3060.06). The Reg¡onal District's share of the corporation is equal to 4.7% andthe degree of
control is proportionate to the ownership share. As no benefits are expected from the ownersh¡p, it has not been accounted for as an
equity investment.

15.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION
The Regional District is a diversified government organization that provides a wide range of services which include GeneralGovernment;
Protective Services; Parks, Recreation, & Cultural; Environmental Development; Env¡ronmental Health; Economic DevelopmenU Trans¡t;
and Util¡ties.

General Government: administration, finance, emergency planning, local community commissions, and road ma¡ntenance.
Protective Services: fire protection services; streetlights, and emergency callout service
Parks, Recreat¡on, and Cultural: library, heritage, arena, recreation, and parks services
Environmental Development: inspection, bylaw enforcement, and planning
Environmental Health: landfill, recycling garbage pickup and removal
Economic Development: econom¡c development
Regional Transit: regional trans¡t
Utilities: water and sewer services
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15.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)

The following statement provides additional information on the revenue and expenses for these functions:
Pârks,

Recreation, &

General Protective Cultural Env¡ronmental Environmentâl
Serv¡ces Services Develooment Health

Government

Economic

Regional

Development

Tra

Utilities

ns¡t

2OL7

2076

s 2,86r,s46
1,058,820

s 2,8L4,79s
577,662

1,890,10s

r,232,896

Reven ues
Tâ

s

xât¡on

Gra

nts

s37,933

s

310,58s

s

578,644
36,303

Other reven ue

20,269

132,885

5

67,596

Sale ofservices

lnterest earned

962,449 s

ss4,477

s

67,247

r77,67s

20,500

225,956

6,O22

1,258,855

9,874

n,943

L,227

13,302

2,r77

73,900

8,s31

31,365

7,!13,149 340,9s9

s

18s,s48

40,732

1,299,309 140,134 1,,967,809

s

-

365,167
96ß42 242390
1,870 9,1Lr
2,707

8s,801

64,229

136,766

700,173

22A,sO9 283,800 6s9,369 6,033,038 s,383,7ss

Expenses

wages & benefits
Serv¡ces & materials

Amortizat¡on

s

807,738
(9,0s2)
93,649

s

s

462,372

s

127,723

301,551

598,482

7,750

75,274

739,972

7,760

5

lnterest

406

892,335 376,765 7,200,426
Annualsurplus(det¡cit)S 220,814

16.

5 113,4ss S
s 1,668
gAt,795
89,433 266,856
253,r74
230,094
340
261,088
377,724

S(35,806)S 98,483 S

s 1,890,680
2,495,329

s 7,482,787
2,764,799

4o2,777

783,403

406

L37,213 L,59s,41,9 203,228 266,856 515,870 5,188,532
2,901 S

372,390

S

25,281 576,944 S143,499

71,474
5,042,407

S 844,506 S

341,348

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certa¡n comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year

t7

PRIOR PERIOD RESTATED

A 2016 contribution of 520,000 made by the Town of Port McNeill for a Forestry workforce training project (VINTAS) that started in
2017 and is on-going was reclassified from Other Liab¡lities to Deferred Revenue for 2016 statements.

18.

CONTINGENT TIABILITIES

During the reporting period, the Regional District became aware of a potential 525,000 employee benefit obligation. No provision has
been made in these financial statements as the Board is still considering this matter and the outcome is unknown.

19.

BUDGET

Budget figures represent the Financial Plan Bylaw adopted by the Board on March 27,2O!7. The financial plan forms the basis for
taxat¡on and fees and charges rates which may be required for a particular year. The following reconciliation of the budgeted Annual
Surplus is provided to show which ¡tems must be added or removed to reflect the budgeted financial plan.

s

Budgeted Annua I Surpl us per Sta tement of Opera ti ons

Transfers to (from) Non-statutory reserves
Transfers to (from) Statutory reserves
TCA capita I expenditures
Debt principal repayments/actuarial adjustments
Budgeted Surpl us, per Regi ona I D¡stri ct Of Mount Waddi ngton Byl aw

\L

2017
(1,11s,800)
(68,s00)
(318,700)
t,472,O00
31,000

No.918

S

